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The building complex ‘Kreuzstrasse 54, constructed in 1856 and
1896, is located in the fashionable Seefeld quarter in Zurich. At the
turn on the century, this suburban area around the Stadelhofen train
station was characterized by small industrial and commercial
enterprises. Today it is a preferred office and administrative district.
Apart from good public transportation facilities serving the area, the
opera house, the Bellevueplatz square and the inviting promenades
along the Lake of Zurich, which lead to the old town, are in the
immediate vicinity. Due to poorly executed modifications and
extensions carried out in the course of time in this area, the former
factory buildings were seriously impaired. Having been used as
storage buildings, they were run down, and gradually, the clarity of
their original function was lost.

Therefore, during the conversion of the Project ‘Kreuzstrasse 54, the
main emphasis was placed on carefully repairing the buildings,
amending them with new elements and finally implementing their
new function as office and administration buildings.

On the former factory building the architectural epochs and changes
of time and style are reflected and clearly visible. In the task of
unifying and marrying the two old factory buildings, we integrated
architectural elements such as a new south elevation, elevator and
stairwells, new roof, and the extention in the courtyard as well as the
new windows in the now remodeled old building by the use of
materials such as steel, concrete, glass, natural stone, plaster and
zinc sheets.

The corner part of the factory complex, built in 1896 out of red-
yellow brick, is the main building, whereas the older part, built in
1856, having a rectangular plan and a gable roof, can be described
as the annex. In order to refine the annex in function and design, the
old deteriorated ‘main facade’ of corrugated sheet metal was
replaced by an expressive new section made of concrete, glass and
steel. This reduction as a postulate of the twentieth century forms,
together with the access ramp, a pleasantly quiet contrast to the
completely restored brick facade of the main building.

In order to make all eight office levels easily accessible, without
losing any quality of space, the old staircase was demolished and
replaced with an elevator and glass roofed stairwell. Being placed
centrally between the two buildings, it provides a very efficient
access and the optimal combination of the floor areas.

The circulation core with a touch of futuristic appearance, implanted
between the buildings, forms a clear contrast to the restored interior
with white, vaulted ceilings and cast columns.

The round, transparent glass floor of the elevator permits a view of
the hydraulic hoist system, whereas the round glass roof offers a
beautiful view of the sky, making the elevator ride an event. .
Making the office levels accessible from all eight entrance areas via
the staircase challenged us due to the differing heights of the two
buildings and the varying floor levels. In order to overcome these
leve] changes, an independent steel slaircase suspended in the' shaft
was designed. This allowed the landings to float individually, either
with or without a step, consequently permitting height adjuslt.nenls.
The roofs are covered with uniform light gray zinc sheets, }Nhl(‘.h
enabled a subtle integration of the new skylight on the main

building, in order to emphasize the unity of the two factory
buildings.

The steel and glass roof above the courtyard provides a sense of
lightness and elegance, as an integrated part of the new architectural
elements. It clearly contrasts with the surrounding buildings.

The entire complex was planned with a sophisticated standard of
details. The articulated expression in the forms of the windows,
doors, mail boxes, light fittings, railings etc., having been developed
as prototypes for this project, enhance the delicate appearance of the
sensitively restored brick facade.

This project illustrates in exemplary manner how the traditional and
contemporary slyles can excitingly coexist.
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Right : Site /!/:Ui. Below : General
piew from south. Photos on pp.95.
99 exept noted by SCHIESS. .
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Photo: Circulation core. Photo EW  H—Falr—irg.
courtesy of the architect.
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I :Axonometric drawing. /uu/.'m(u
from south.

Hsometric drawing of the roof.
: East-west section.

23rd floor plan.

22nd floor plan.

6 : Ground floor plan.

:Basement floor.
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